
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 16, 2010

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on August 16, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas,
New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor, Kathleen McPherson, Manager and Asst. Clerk Horwath

Presentations - Certificates of Recognition for Harold Carty & Albert Flitcroft
Mayor Beck presented certificates of recognition and said a few words about Harold and Al and their years of service
with the Township.

WORK SESSION

Update on Proposed Fee Increases
Mayor Beck asked Council if they could live with the new fees.
Councilmember Conrad felt the recreation fee increases may keep kids out of the activities.  He said the parents
might not be able to afford it.  He said it wasn �t a good time to raise the fees and it wouldn �t make much of a
difference.
Councilmember Mazurek said they had cut the other proposed fees and they needed to come up with some
increases due to a million dollar shortfall.
Councilmember Douglass said the public  asked Council to be fair and they were trying to be as fair as poss ible.  He
didn �t feel there would be much opposition with the campgrounds, marinas, etc.  He said they tried to put everything
in the middle.
Deputy Mayor Lare said as a coach he knew some kids couldn �t play due to the fees.  He felt any increase could
have more kids who could not play.  He said there were some people who wouldn �t ask for help.  He mentioned that
50% of the elementary kids received free lunches.  He said he was in agreement with the other fees, he would like to
talk more to the businesses and the Lower Township Chamber to maybe consider a phase in period with the trash. 
He suggested maybe 50% one year and 50% the next.
Mayor Beck said it was a tough thing.  He didn �t want to be painted as if he was against kids playing sports and he
was sure that wasn �t anyone �s intent,  but he felt the pain should be shared all around.  He said if they didn �t get the
money and the 2% CAP was there,  they would loose employees.  He said it was going to be a very tough budget
year for the Township and all the other towns.  
Mayor Beck said Council had been very frugal and made it affordable for the residents.  He stated if there was a
child that had a problem with fees for recreation they could call the Township and they could see what could be done



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 16, 2010

Page 2

to help.  He said the increases had to be across the board and he was fine with it.
Deputy Mayor Lare said he couldn �t arbitrarily assist people without it being legislated.  He said if the Mayor was
going to pay for it just say it.  He said as a coach he did that every year and saw kids who �s parents couldn �t afford to
pay.
Mayor Beck said why not do away with the recreation fees altogether if that was the point he was trying to make.
He said the real culprit was the salaries they had to pay and they were forced into a corner.  He said to get ride of
interest arbitration and no fees would be raised.  He said they had no options and a vast majority of the parents
understood if the fees were raised.
Councilmember Mazurek asked the Solicitor if a sunset date could be put in for the trash for two years and revisited
the third year?
Solicitor Monzo said it could be done.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the fees.
Joe Winters of Florida Avenue said he didn �t think the fees were out of line, he felt they should have been raised a
long time ago.  He didn �t want to see anyone hurt and the kids not be able to play.  He suggested to set up a fund for
kids that couldn �t afford the recreation fees.  
Sheri Hemingway said her business didn �t require trash pick and she wasn �t going to pay for it.  She said for those
who required a dumpster they should pay a private contractor to pick up their trash.  She said a business that
generated enough trash for a dumpster should have a private contractor and that was part of having a business.  
Ms. Hemingway asked Council to look at the roll off can issue.  She further elaborated about the insurance for the
roll off cans, the DEP stickers and the liability involved.  She said the residents tax dollars should not be paying for a
business to have their roll-offs picked up, they should be using a private contractor.  She felt the Township could be
saving money by having them use private contractors.
Mayor Beck said the trash fee increases should be revisited at the next meeting so they could gather more
information.
He said Ms. Hemingway �s points were well taken.
Mayor Beck said it was a complex issue and would suggest to put it off to the next meeting.
Manager McPherson said there was a different schedule for a business that only had cans.  She went over the
number of businesses that had cans and roll-offs.
Joe Boyle of Arizona Avenue said they should make sure the kids had what they needed to play ball.
Mayor Beck closed the public portion and asked Council if they wanted to revisit the trash at the next meeting.
Deputy Mayor Lare said why not bundle it all and do it at one meeting.
Manager McPherson said they would have to prepare ordinances so they would be in place for next year.
Mayor Beck asked if they were separate ordinances.
Manager McPherson said they were all separate.
Mayor Beck asked if all the new fees could be put on one ordinance.
Solicitor Monzo said they could amend various code sections, but it could be done through one ordinance.
Mayor Beck said since there were some questions with the commercial trash did Council want to move forward with
the other fee increases or wait and do everything at one time.
Councilmember Mazurek said to get done what they could.  He said he wasn �t sure what Sheri �s argument was, but
he understood what she was saying.  He said they were currently picking up commercial trash with no fee.  He said
the Township had an ordinance in place where they could have been charging more, but chose not to do that in
support of the businesses.  
A brief discussion ensued on the issue of the businesses using private trash collection.
Mayor Beck said what the Township was charging the business was halfway and it would generate some of the
revenue they were looking for.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 16, 2010

Page 3

Councilmember Douglass said if the businesses had to use private haulers it could affect the business worse
because of the cost involved.
Ms. Hemingway said if that was something they needed for their business to run then it was a business expense for
them.
Councilmember Mazurek read an excerpt from a letter from a business owner about people dropping trash in their
dumpster and if they had to pay it would be a problem.  He felt the Township proposal was a middle of the road
proposal.
Sharon Kelliare said she knew nothing about the trash, but in listening to Ms. Hemingway she brought up some valid
points.  She said the liability issue with the dumpsters was a big problem.  She thought they should hold off on the
issue and investigate more.
Mayor Beck said to move forward and hold off on the trash issue and Council agreed.
Councilmember Mazurek said as long as they were holding off on the trash issue they needed some direction on
what to look into.
Solicitor Monzo asked if the sunset clause was on the other fees?
Mayor Beck said it was just on the trash.

Jerry Keelan - HMFA - Brief Overview of Loan Program
 Mr. Keelan thanked the Mayor and Council and said it was a privilege to attend the Council meeting.  He said Mr.
Sheftz and some local people from the legislature were instrumental in formulating a bill to address the issue of salt
water intrusion as well as some chemical contaminants that affect drinking water.  He said normally there was a test
required and certified by the County Health Board of the well water which was about a $350.00 - $400.00 chemical
analysis.  He said through the DEP certain areas in Townbank and Villas Section of the Township had certain
chemicals and salt in their water.  He said some studies were done and well point test and had delineated a map
showing both areas of Lower Township which encompassed more than 2200 homes.  He said with the well water
funding program which he offered through his agency NJ Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency people are able to
get a loan to hook into the public water system.  
Mr. Keelan said Lower Township MUA was receiving funding through the Department of Agriculture through a grant
and it was the second largest grant given to a municipality in the State to install fresh water lines to Townbank and
Villas area.  He recited the fees involved for hooking into the water system.  He said the loan was up to $10,000.00
and no interest, however there was a 1% servicing charge due to the cost involved in processing the loan.  He said it
provided a loan for ten years if the money being borrowed was less than $3,000.00 then it was a one year payment. 
If it was more than $3,000.00 it was a payment twice a year.  He said people should co-ordinate the time of their
loan to coincide with the plumber to hook into the water and to pay the connection fee.  He said the application fee
was $75.00 and it was a mail in form.  He said you didn �t have to reside in the home, it could be your second home
as long as it was residential property you were eligible.  
Mr. Keelan said there was plenty of funding for Lower Township.  He said the check went directly to the home owner
and they were responsible to pay the MUA and contractor.  He said a second mortgage was put on the home and it
wasn �t a credit driven program.  He said it was a good program and thanked the Mayor and Council for giving him
the opportunity to come and talk about it.  
Steve Sheftz asked if it was available to out of state property owners that rented the property or it was their second
home.
Mr. Keelan said it didn �t matter, the program was designed to bring healthy water to the property.  He said it had to
be a place where someone lived.
A resident asked if the 1% service fee was every year.
Mr. Keelan said yes, it was sent along with your payment.
Jacki Scanner asked how did he arrive at the $10,000.00 figure.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 16, 2010

Page 4

Mr. Keelan explained the cost incurred with the hook up and some unforseen things that could occur with the
process.  He also mentioned there were no closing cost or attorney fees.   

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
Councilmember Conrad questioned if Resolution #2010-216 was to start  a Shade Tree Commission.
Manager McPherson said no it wasn �t.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
Joe Winters asked what Resolution #2010-212, Special Item of Revenue was about?
Manager McPherson said it was money being put into the budget that they didn �t have in the beginning of the year
and they received grants throughout the year.
Mayor Beck gave some examples of the different grants received.
Mr. Winters asked about Resolution #2010-218, Capital Budget Amendment. 
Manager McPherson said it was financial information the CFO provided when the capital plan was amended based
on what was being proposing.

Consent Agenda  
Approval of Minutes August 2, 2010
Res.  #2010-211, Payment of Vouchers, $1,665,392.28
Res.  #2010-212, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159
Res. #2010-213, Resolution to Accept Crest Place as Suitably Improved for Development
Res. #2010-214, Resolution Approving Project proposal Between Hatch Mott MacDonald and the

Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to Delaware Bay Shore
Outfall Extensions, Contract M-3 ($19,500)

Res. #2010-215, Authorization for Refund of Taxes (2 properties)
Res. #2010-216, Green communities Grant Application for $3,000 for the Development of a

Community Forestry Management Plan
Res. #2010-217, Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave (D. Revilli - $60.96)
Res. #2010-218, Capital Budget Amendment
Res. #2010-219, Resolution Acknowledging Award of Contract for Electric Generation Supply

Services (Bid A-28), for the South Jersey Power Cooperative
Ord.  #2010-08, Bond Ordinance Providing for Various Capital Improvements of the Township of     

                          Lower, In The County of Cape May, New Jersey, Appropriating the Aggregate        
                          Amount of $970,000 Therefor and Authorizing the Issuance of $905,000 Bonds or  
                          Notes of the Township to Finance Part of the Cost Thereof, 1st rdg.  (2nd rdg.           
                          Wednesday, September 8, 2010)

Ord. #2010-09, Bond Ordinance Providing for Road and Drainage Improvements in and by the
Township of Lower, In The County of Cape May, New Jersey, Appropriating
$445,000Therefor and Authorizing the Issuance of $415,000 Bonds or Notes of
the Township to Finance Part of the Cost Thereof, 1st rdg.   (2nd rdg. Wednesday,
September 8, 2010)



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 16, 2010

Page 5

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember Lare.  The
consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Administrative Reports
July Reports Animal Control, BOCA, Clerk, Dog License, Engineer, Fire Safety, Municipal

Court, Municipal Judge, Public Works, Tax Collector, Vital Statistics

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said movies in the park had been moved to the Recreation Center and a lot of families had
come out for that.  He also reminded everyone to come out to the Farmers Market.
Mayor Beck asked Eileen Kreis to come forward with her announcement.
Eileen thanked the people who helped last week with movie night.    She read an announcement of the  � NJ Run for
the Fallen � and gave the details of the event and also some history of the event.  She said the kick off of the event 
was 6:00 am on September 25th at the Lighthouse and it would cover 140 miles.

Public Comments

DCA Grant for Work at the Naval Air Station
Bill Greenfield of Villas said at the last meeting a resolution was pass regarding a DCA grant for Americans with 
Disabilities for work at the naval air station.   He asked how it worked.
Manager McPherson said it was ran through the Township.
Mr. Greenfield said he had spoken before about the street ends and said Cape May received a grant for beach
access for ADA and asked if it was something the Township could do.
Mayor Beck said they could look into it.
Manager McPherson said they were using their public facilities application to extend the outfalls.
Mr. Greenfield said he didn �t understand why they couldn �t move forward with that while they did the outfalls.
Manager McPherson said they could get that funding only once a year.
Mr. Greenfield said it wouldn �t cost much to put a set of steps in.
Manager McPherson said the problem was the State permits to do the work and you couldn �t put steps on privately
owned beaches.
Mr. Greenfield said it was a liability issue if some fell.  He said he was asking for a set of steps.  He said there were
two streets with high drop offs.
Manager McPherson said maybe they could put sand, but the steps were a whole different issue.
Mr. Greenfield said he could contact DEP himself.
Joe McAdams said the Township needed an actuary with AIG and needed new money.
Joe Boyle said he didn �t receive anything from FEMA or for the veteran children.
   
                                                                        Proposed Fee Increases
Joe Winters asked what was the increase on the proposed fees.
Deputy Mayor Lare said it was $143,000.00 and $96,000.00 of that was trash.
Mayor Beck said if he stopped in Township Hall he could get a copy.

Res. #2010-220,     A Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Pubic in Accordance with the Provisions of



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 16, 2010

Page 6

the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 (Personnel)
Deputy Mayor Lare motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.  The resolution was
adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck   �yes �.

Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Councilmember Douglass motioned to
adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at
8:55 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: September 8, 2010


